CT-57

THE BREWHOUSE 18th. century

The Brewhouse is noted as being the birghplace of
Thomas Johnson, the first Governor of Maryland as well as
that of Mrs. John Quincy Adams.

Apparently the original house was a one and one half
story gambrel roofed structure but was considerably alter-
ed in the early nineteenth century. The existing house is
two storys in height, two bays in length, and has two
exterior chimneys at one end that are joined at the base
by a one story pent. To one end is a later(?) two story
wing, two bays in length, with a central chimney.

Most of the interior detail of this house is of
Federal character although a narrow closed string stair
from the earlier strnucture is retained.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

A11 of the historic activity associated with this spot has perhaps created
some confusion about the age of the house. That there are early refer-
ences to buildings here creates archaeological possibilities. Family
history includes the recollection that early in this century there were
many alterations and that earlier a one-and-a-half story dormered "colonial"
house had been altered and raised to two full stories. Examination of
the west wing of the present structure, however, leaves one with the
impression of a very nice Federal house. The Federal period is associated
with the years 1790-1830's., This impression is given mostly by the side
hall and double parlor plan., The double door connecting the two rooms,
however, is a twentieth century alteration. Each of the parlors is

heated by fireplaces that are served by two exterior end chimneys. The
chimneys are double shouldered. The mantel in the north parlor is
Victorian, however, the one in the south parlor is Federal. Door and
window mouldings are found throughout the house which date from the

same period. A beaded baseboard was noted in the hall. There are doors
at each end of the hall with transoms.

The second story emulates the first in plan and it is reached by a "hidden
stairs" (closed string from the earlier structure although reported to be
retained) on the west side of the hall. This feature is quite Federal in
nature and can be associated with the Jeffersonian displeasure of hallways
with grand stairs. It could be coincidence, but the stairs at Brewhouse
in concept at least are quite like those at Monticello and other houses
where the hiding of the main stairway can be seen as a reaction to
Georgian design.

The third level is a half-story containing a single room with a trapeziodal
ceiling, It is finished with the same one inch hair plaster as the rooms
below,

The handmade nails and riven laths reported in "Know Your County" could not
be seen. Only cut nails were observed, however, examination beneath the
hallway confirms that this is a post-and-beam structure. Both hewn and
pit-sawn joists and sills were seen and they are joined by mortise-tennon
and trunnels. Brewhouse rests on a foundation made with much mortar and
shells, There are posts or piers made of the same material beneath the
house.

The exterior, except for the chimmeys, does not create the same feeling of
"earliness" as the interior. This fact is not the result of the east
addition so much as the aluminum siding and 2/2 windows. These are
restorable features. The building does contain, however, the vertical
thrust characteristic of so many other Federal houses in the area that
have these same double end chimmeys.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

While the property on which this house stands has a traceable history
dating back to the seventeenth century it is clear that no buildings have
survived from that period. Among the early events connected with the site
are the birth of Thomas Johnson in 1732 and the Battle of St. Leonard's
Creek in 1814, Not long after the War of 1812 the great steamship era
began and it lasted for over 100 years. The Weems Line was most famous
on the Patuxent and St. Leonard's Creek and was a regular stop during
most of that period. The wharf on this site was the scene of much coming
and going. Passengers, mail, supplies and long awaited items from Balti-
more were unloaded and tobacco, produce and more passengers were loaded
for the return trip. There is evidence that marine trade commenced on
this spot in the early part of the eighteenth century. Early photographs
document the activity of the steamboats as does oral history provided

by older residents of the neighborhood. There are those who recall the
showboats that used to tie-up at various places in the area and put on
plays. Although it seems certain that the wharf which was on this site
predates Mackall ownership it has been in the family since the 1840's and
today is still known as"Mackall'!s Wharf",

The mistake should not be made-of choosing a single period and then

seeing if Brewhouse fits it or not, nor should we limit our concern

as preservationists and historians with the house alone. The value

of the farm at Mackalls is its total ability to each of the many events
vwhich have taken place over a long period of time. This includes not
only what we know about it during the Colonial period, but what that
place has witnessed since the founding of the United States. That
includes another war with England and the invasion of the Patuxent

by British forces, the advent of the steamboat in commercial transportationm,
the continuation of tobacco farming as Calvert County's primary occupation
and, last but not least, the ability of the house to teach us something
about construction methods and tastes after the Revolution, when we

became a nation of our own.
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#7 Description continued. (CT-57)

That this waterside property was both a farm and shipping center is
documented by the collection of outbuildings that stand along the approach
lane. These include tobacco barns, a cornhouse, shed and garage. Also,
among them is a ¢.1940's post office., This little single story building
is only one bay deep, but it is three bays wide. It served as a post
office until the 1950's and Mrs. Mackall, who was the post mistress, says
that government records prove a post office operated at this site for 90
years previous to its closing. Although this little building may now

be more than thirty some years in age it should be considered valuable
for its ability to document an earlier era of the postal system. A
concerted effort by the U.S. Postal Service in the 1970's to close its
smaller offices will increase this value.

North of the house there are two modern tobacco barns along the road
and on top of the hill is the cemetery where Governor Johnson's parents
were buried. Several early stones mark the graves., This cemetery is
the strongest visual evidence of activity on the property prior to the
Revolution,




#9 Bibliographical References continued, (CT-57)

Delaplaine's Life of Thomas Johnson says "near the mouth of St. Leonard Creek™",
He also states house burned down in 18th century.

Wilstach in Tidewater Maryland gives "a plantation near the mouth of St.
Leonard Creek".

The Biographical Directory of the American Congress says only "near the
mouth of St. Leonard's Creek in Calvert County, MD".

Researched by James Wilfong, Vice-Chairman , Historic District Commission
October 1977.
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The mantels are Federal
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